TEXAS STATE BOARD MENBERS OF THE BOAKD
OF EXAMINERS OF Ronald S. Palj:ll;lrlels;lel::i(.)w\l’cii;i:::
P SYCHOLO GIS T S Hern;an B. Z&dler, M.A.

Ryan T. Bridges

Jamie Becker, Ph.D.

Jeanette Deas Calhoun, Ph.D.

Susan Fletcher, Ph.D.

. Sangeeta Singg, Ph.D.

Diane Moore Andoni Zagouris, M.A.
Board Administrator

Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists Meeting Agenda
May 13, 2021, 10:00 a.m.

Video Conference via Zoom

Due to Governor Greg Abbott’s March 13, 2020 proclamation of a state of disaster affecting all counties
in Texas due to the Coronavirus (COVID-19) and the Governor’s March 16, 2020 suspension of certain
provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, the May 13, 2021 meeting of the Texas State Board of
Examiners of Psychologists will be held by videoconference call, as authorized under Texas Government
Code section 551.127. There will be no physical meeting location open to the public so long as the
disaster declaration is in effect.

Members of the public will have access and a means to participate in this meeting, by two-way
communication, by entering the URL address https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86545040107 into their web
browser or by calling (346) 248-7799 and entering the webinar ID 865 4504 0107. Additional telephone
numbers and videoconference call access information can be found in the attached addendum. An
electronic copy of the agenda and meeting materials will be made available at www.bhec.texas.gov prior
to the meeting. A recording of the meeting will be available after the meeting is adjourned. To obtain a
recording, please submit a request to open.records@bhec.texas.gov.

For public participants, once the public comment item is reached on the agenda after the meeting
convenes, the presiding officer will ask those joining by computer to use the “raise hand” feature to
indicate who would like to make a public comment. Those individuals who raise their hand will then be
unmuted to give public comment. Once all of the individuals with raised hands have been given an
opportunity to make public comment, the individuals appearing by telephone will be unmuted and asked
whether they would like to make a public comment. When making a public comment, please identify
yourself and whether you are speaking individually or on behalf of an organization. All public comments
will be limited to 3 minutes, unless otherwise directed by the presiding officer. In lieu of providing public
comment during the meeting, you may submit written public comments via email to
General@bhec.texas.gov in advance of the meeting. The written public comments received will be
submitted to the board members for their consideration during the meeting, but will not be read aloud.

In the event Governor Greg Abbott’s March 13, 2020 disaster declaration is not renewed or expires prior
to May 13, 2021, then pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code Ann. §551.127, notice is hereby given that one or
more Board members may appear at the scheduled meeting via videoconference call, but the presiding

*Topic requiring either agency action or discussion.

1


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86545040107

officer will be physically present at 333 Guadalupe St., Ste. 3-900, Austin, Texas 78701. This location
will be open to the public only in the event the March 13" disaster declaration is not renewed.

Please note that the Board may request input during the meeting from any interested parties or members
of the public during its discussion of an agenda item.

If you are planning to attend this meeting and need auxiliary aids, services or materials in an alternate
format, please contact the Board at least 5 working days before the meeting date. Phone: (512) 305-7700,
E-MAIL: general@bhec.texas.gov, TTY/RELAY TEXAS: 711 or 1-800-RELAY TX.

The Board may go into Executive Session to deliberate any item listed on this agenda if authorized under
Texas Open Meetings Act, Government Code, Ch. 551.

The Board may discuss and take action concerning any matter on the agenda and in a different order from
what it appears herein.

Meeting Agenda for May 13, 2021, 10:00 am

1. Call to Order — Roll Call (Bielamowicz, Chair)

2. Public Comments - Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes per individual, unless otherwise
directed by the Board Chair.

Approval of Minutes*

4. Chair’s Report (Bielamowicz)
A. Discussion on Future Board Meetings
5. Board Administrator Report (Moore)

A. Council Report - FY 2021-Q2 Measures Report

Section 2002 of HR7105 — Expansion of Pilot Program in VA System
Crack Down on Emotional Support Animals (State of Ohio)
PSYPACT Update

ASPPB Update

1. Mobility Program Missing Documentation Affidavit

m o 0w

1. Modifications of Accreditation Processes

iii. Response to article published in American Psychologist regarding EPPP (Part 2 —
Skills)

iv. Mid-Year Meeting Recap (Palomares)
6. Enforcement Division
A. Enforcement Staff:
i Review of Dismissals by Executive Director and Staff (Fernandez)
ii. Status Reports - FY 2021— 2P Quarter (Moore)
iii. Changes to Projected Time Schedules (Fernandez)
v. Discussion on ISC Panels* (Bridges)

*Topic requiring either agency action or discussion.

2



10.

iii. Changes to Projected Time Schedules (Fernandez)

v. Discussion on ISC Panels* (Bridges)

V. Dismissals for Board ratification* (Fernandez / Bridges)

Agency Counsel:

1. Review of Agreed Orders Approved by Executive Director (Bridges)

il. Agreed Orders for Board Ratification* (Bridges)

1. Review of Contested Cases from the State Office of Administrative Hearings
(SOAH)* (Bridges)

Committee Reports

A.

Applications Committee (Adler / Palomares)

1. Appeal of Application Denial* (Per 22 TAC 882.3(b))
il. Application(s) for Licensure*

Compliance Committee (Fletcher / Singg)

1. Review of Compliance with Agreed Orders
Jurisprudence Examination Committee (Fletcher)

Rules Committee (Becker, Calhoun, and Palomares)

1. New Rules or Proposed Rule Changes Being Considered for Recommendation to
the Executive Council*

a. 463.11, Supervised Experience Required for Licensure as a Psychologist
b. 465.13, Personal Problems, Conflicts and Dual Relationships

il. Rules Published in the Texas Register and Awaiting Adoption Recommendations*

Review Public Comments - TSBEP Social Media Use and Electronic Communications
Guidelines*

Recommendations for agenda items for the next Board meeting

Adjournment

*Topic requiring either agency action or discussion.

3



Addendum: Additional Videoconference and Telephone Conference Call Information

Regular meeting of the Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists.

When: May 13, 2021 10:00 AM Central Time (US and Canada)
Topic: Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists May 13, 2021 Board Meeting
Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86545040107
Or One tap mobile :

US: +13462487799,,86545040107# or +16699009128,,86545040107#
Or Telephone:

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

US: +1 346 248 7799 or +1 669 900 9128 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 646 558 8656 or +1 301 715
8592 or+1 312 626 6799

Webinar ID: 865 4504 0107

International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdIQRI3xfK



MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

TEXAS STATE BOARD
OF EXAMINERS OF Ronald S. Palomares, Ph.D., Vice-chair
PSYCHOLOGISTS e

Jamie Becker, Ph.D.

Jeanette Deas Calhoun, Ph.D.

Susan Fletcher, Ph.D.

Darrel D. Spinks Sangeeta Singg, Ph.D.
Executive Director Andoni Zagouris, ML.A.

John Bielamowicz, Chair

Diane Moore
Board Administrator

Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists
MINUTES
February 11, 2021

The Texas State Board of Examiners of Psychologists met via Zoom video conference on February 11,
2021. The following Board members were in attendance: John Bielamowicz, Chair; Ronald Palomares,
Ph.D., Vice-Chair; Ryan Bridges; Jamie Becker, Ph.D.; Susan Fletcher, Ph.D.; Jeanette Deas Calhoun,
Ph.D.; Sangeeta Singg, Ph.D.; Herman Adler, M.A. and Andoni Zagouris, M.A. Also, in attendance was
Darrel Spinks, Executive Director, and Diane Moore, Board Administrator.

1. The meeting was called to order at 10:06 a.m. by Mr. Bielamowicz
2. The Board moved into Item II, Public Comments:

A. Sandra Martin — spoke regarding looking forward to getting to know the Council and the
Board.

B. Carol Grothues — spoke regarding the value of receiving input from stakeholders and
welcomed new board members

3. The Board moved into Item III, Meeting Minutes.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY DR. PALOMARES AND SECONDED BY DR. FLETCHER TO
APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 19, 2020 BOARD MEETING AS
SUBMITTED. MR. BRIDGES WAS ABSENT FOR THE VOTE. THE MOTION CARRIED.

4. The Board moved into Item IV, Vice-Chair’s Report — Mr. Bielamowicz

A. Mr. Bielamowicz thanked the board members and public for being here today. Mr.
Bielamowicz recognized past chair Dr. Branaman for all his years of service of over a
decade of leadership on this Board. In addition, Mr. Bielamowicz thanked Ms. Downes
and Dr. Mock for their service on the Board.

333 Guadalupe, Suite 3-900, Austin, Texas 78701
(Administration) 512-305-7700 (Enforcement) 512-305-7709 (TDD) 1-800-735-2989 (Fax) 512-305-7701 https://www.bhec.texas.gov

The Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, age, sex, disability, or sexual orientation.



B.

Mr. Bielamowicz welcomed new board members Dr. Becker, Dr. Calhoun, and Dr. Singg.

The Board moved into Item V, the Board Administrator’s Report — Ms. Moore.

A.

TSBEP Measures Report — 1% Quarter - Ms. Moore presented the first quarter measure
report.

Executive Order Increasing Economic and Geographic Mobility — Ms. Moore informed the
Board that the Executive Order Increasing Economic and Geographic Mobility will reduce
the burden of occupational regulations in order to promote the free practice of commerce,
lower consumer costs, and increase economic and geographic mobility, which includes
military spouse.

Society for the Advancement of Psychotherapy - Ms. Moore shared the letter from the
Society for the Advancement of Psychotherapy regarding the EPPP with the Board.

PSYPACT Update - Ms. Moore reported that seven states have introduced legislation for
inter-jurisdictional practice. Currently there are fifteen states participating in the
PSYPACT.

The Board moved into Item VI, Enforcement Matters and Report from General Counsel.

A.

Mr. Fernandez presented the cases dismissed by the Board Staff:

1. 2019-00039-4017;

il 2019-00099-3057;

iii. 2019-00102-6595;

Ms. Moore presented the enforcement Status Report for the first quarter.
Mr. Fernandez discussed the Projected Time Schedule — none.
Dismissal recommendations for Board ratification — none.

Discussion of selection and makeup of ISC Panels — The Board discussed the makeup of
the ISC Panel historically included a public member, and two professional members. Mr.
Hyde stated that the ISC Panel makeup is no longer required, due to statutory changes.
Under BHEC rule, staff can do the ISC. Mr. Hyde further explained the new process for
the ISC Panel will no longer be quarterly, but will be called upon via ad-hoc, on an as
needed basis. This new method will allow the staff to address cases more quickly. The
maximum number of board members that can serve on an ISC Panel is three board
members, however one professional Board Member is helpful to have at the ISC. The
Board’s consensus is to move to the on-call ad-hoc ISC meetings. In addition, it is the
Board’s consensus to keep three board members on the panel. Dr. Palomares noted that the

2



Board should keep a LSSP on call when needed on the ISC Panel. The Board will keep a
rotating list of Board members for the ISC Panel. The ISC Panel list for September will be
Dr. Fletcher, Mr. Zagouris, and Dr. Calhoun. The December 2021 panel list will be Dr.
Becker, Mr. Adler, and Mr. Bielamowicz.

F. Dismissals for Board Ratification - none
G. Agreed Orders for the Board’s approval - none
7. The Board moved into Item VII, Committee Reports — none
A. Applications Committee
1. Applications Denial Appeal (two files)
a. The Board reviewed the denial appeal request for Velma Jean Stanley.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY DR. PALOMARES AND SECONDED BY MR. ZAGOURIS TO
TABLE THE APPLICATION. THE VOTE WAS UNANIMOUS. THE MOTION CARRIED.

The Board recessed for a break at 12:15 p.m.
The Board reconvened from a break at 12:26 p.m.

b. The Board reviewed the denial appeal request for Leslie James Kelley. Mr.
Bridges confirmed that applicant completed an APPIC Internship and the
applicant’s academic program was APA Accredited.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY DR. PALOMARES AND SECONDED BY MR. ZAGOURIS TO
ALLOW DR. KELLY TO CONTINUE HIS CURRENT SUPERVISION FOR HIS POST
DOCTORAL HOURS AND WHEN HE REACHES THE 1750 HOURS, HE SUBMITS THE
DOCUMENTATION TO THE BOARD UNDER THIS LICENSE AND HAVE IT REVIEWED
AT THAT TIME AND HAVE HIS APPLICATION ACTED ON. THE VOTE WAS
UNANIMOUS. THE MOTION CARRIED.

B. Compliance Committee — none
1. Review Compliance with Agreed Orders — none
C. Jurisprudence Committee — none

D. The Board reviewed the Proposed Rules:
1. Update on Rules submitted to the Council — none

il. The Board reviewed the Proposed Rule Changes:



a. §463.9, Licensed Specialist in School Psychology- Repeal Trainee Status
language.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY DR. FLETCHER AND SECONDED BY MR. ADLER TO
ACCEPT THE PROPOSED CHANGES AS STATED. THE VOTE CARRIED.

b. §465.2, Supervision.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY MR. BRIDGES AND SECONDED BY MR ADLER TO ACCEPT
THE PROPOSED CHANGES AS STATED. THE VOTE CARRIED.

c. §465.38, Psychologist Services for Schools.
A MOTION WAS MADE BY DR. FLETCHER AND SECONDED BY MR. BRIDGES TO
ACCEPT THE PROPOSED CHANGES WITH THE FIRST OPTION FOR PART B AS
DISCUSSED. THE VOTE CARRIED.
The Board moved to item VIII, Old Business — none
The Board moved into Item IX, New Business.
A. Election of Vice-Chair
A MOTION WAS MADE BY DR. FLETCHER AND SCONDED BY MR. BRIDGES TO RE-

ELECT DR RONALD PALOMARES AS THE VICE-CHAIR. THE VOTE WAS UNANIMOUS.
MOTION CARRIED.

B. The Board discussed the frequency of establishing the schedule for reviewing committee

assignments. The Board will keep the schedule for committee assignments every two years.
C. Committee Assignments

1. Applications Committee — Mr. Adler and Dr. Palomares

il. Compliance Committee — Dr. Fletcher and Dr. Singg

1il. Jurisprudence Committee — Dr. Fletcher

1v. Rules Committee - Dr. Palomares, Dr. Becker, and Dr. Calhoun

V. Personnel Committee - This committee is no longer needed since personnel matters

are handled under the Council.
D. Discussion on whether to transition from written meeting minutes to audio or video

recordings of open meetings. The Board elected to utilized audio recordings and video for
meeting minutes in lieu of written minutes.

4



10.

11.

E. Discussion on future board meetings. The Board will continue to conduct meetings via Zoom
due to safety concerns with the Pandemic. The Board discussed using a combination of
Zoom and In-person meetings in the future.

F. Discussion on the draft TSBEP Social Media Use and Electronic Communication
Guidelines. The Board requested that the draft guideline be posted on the Board website for
public comments.

G. Dr. Palomares discussed the upcoming ASPPB Mid-Year and Annual Fall meetings. The
Board will need to designate a board member to attend the upcoming meetings.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY DR. SINGG AND SECONDED BY DR. FLETCHER TO HAVE

DR. PALOMARES ATTEND THE ASPPB MEETINGS ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD. THE
VOTE WAS UNANIMOUS. THE MOTION CARRIED.

Agenda Item —Discussion of draft rules regarding waiver of application requirements or
equivalency competency in extreme circumstances.

The meeting was adjourned at 1:41 p.m. by Mr. Bielamowicz.



iy

A B AT R S A AT AT A RS R A S O 0 N YT T A R I AR R R R TG T e S il A L AR R 8

LT A, Y E e T B

2nd QUARTER PERFORMANCE MEASURES
FISCAL YEAR 2021

Submitted to the
Governor’s Office of Budget and Planning
and the Legislative Budget Board

AW T T

by

TEXAS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

March 30, 2021

g N MR T L T 1 7 T O A T T T A T LTI R T TR AL TR T, TR L T, R T S S

B o, R PR W B N TR, SRS T8 RN T i, SRR B DR TR

S-S0 3/30/2/
. Executive Iﬁ;e(tor 4 Date '
S T R A A5 T R R Y W A G W i D Qe A R Wl SR A O A L AT e TR W e g

L R N BN T S 3 T AT R R SR Ul 0 A A P T S T T ) T e A



Efficiency/Qutput Measures with Cover Page and Update Explanation 3/30/2021 10:41:41AM
86th Regular Session, Performance Reporting
Automated Budget and Evaluation System of Texas (ABEST}

Agency code: 510 Agency name: Behavioral Health Executive Council
2021 2021 2021 Percent of
Type/Strategy/Measure Target Actual YTD Annual Target Target Range
Output Measures
1-1-1 LICENSING
1 #NEW LICENSEES ISSUED
Quarter 1 600.00 1,789.00 1,789.00 298.17% * 120.00 - 180.00

Explanation of Variance: FACTORS CAUSING THE VARIANCE

The performance for this measure for the first quarter of FY 2021 exceeds its target. The Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council was created by the
86th Legislature effective 9/1/2019. However, regulatory authority over the four programs (psychologists, social workers, counselors, and marriage and
family therapists) did not transfer to the Council until 9/1/2020. The performance measures for FY 2021 are those that were established for the psychology
program only. Therefore, these targets are not representative of what the actual measures will be with the three additional programs.

HOW THE AGENCY PLANS TO DEAL WITH THE VARIANCE

In its 2022-2023 LLAR, the Council has projected targets that are representative of all four regulatory programs. For this specific measure, the Council has

projected that it will issue 7,000 new licenses. Using this target, during this quarter the Council would have met this measure by issuing 1,789 new
licenses, or 26% of the target.

* Varies by 5% or more from target.

Page 2 of 9



Efficiency/Output Measures with Cover Page and Update Explanation 3/30/2021 10:41:41AM
86th Regular Session, Performance Reporting
Automated Budget and Evaluation System of Texas (ABEST)

Agency code: 510 Agency name: Behavioral Health Executive Council
2021 2021 2021 Percent of
Type/Strategy/Measure Target Actual YTD Annual Target Target Range
Qutput Measures
1 #NEW LICENSEES ISSUED
Quarter 2 600.00 1,997.00 3,786.00 631.00% * 270.00 - 330.00

Explanation of Variance: FACTORS CAUSING THE VARIANCE:

The performance for this measure for the second quarter of FY 2021 exceeds the target. The Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council was created by the
86th Legislature effective 9/1/2019. However, regulatory authority over the four programs (psychologists, social workers, counselors, and marriage and
family therapists) did not transfer to the Council until $/1/2020. The performance measures for FY 202} are those that were established for the psychology
program only. Therefore, these targets are not representative of what the actual measures will be with the three additional programs.

HOW THE AGENCY PLANS TO DEAL WITH THE VARIANCE:

In its 2022-2023 LAR, the Council has projected targets that are representative of all four regulatory programs. For this specific measure, the Council has

projected that it will issue 7,000 new licenses. Using this target, the Council would have met this measure by issuing 3,786 new licenses total year to date,
or 54% of the target.

2 # LICENSE RENEWALS

* Varies by 5% or more from target.

Page 3 of 9



Efficiency/Output Measures with Cover Page and Update Explanation 3/30/2021 10:41:41AM

86th Regular Session, Performance Reporting
Automated Budget and Evaluation System of Texas (ABEST)

Agency code: 510 Agency name: Behavioral Health Executive Couneil
2021 2021 2021 Percent of
Type/Strategy/Measure Target Actual YTD Annusl Target Target Range
Qutput Measures

2 #LICENSE RENEWALS
Quarter 1 8§,800.00 §,507.00 8,907.00 101.22% *

Explanation of Variance: FACTORS CAUSING THE VARIANCE

The performance for this measure for the first quarter of FY 2021 exceeds its target. The Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council was created by the
86th Legislature effective 9/1/2019. However, regulatory authority over the four programs {psychologists, social workers, counselors, and marriage and
family therapists) did not transfer to the Council until 9/1/2020. The performance measures for FY 2021 are those that were established for the psychology
program only. Therefore, these targets are not representative of what the actual measures will be with the three additional programs.

HOW THE AGENCY PLANS TO DEAL WITH THE VARIANCE

In its 2022-2023 LAR, the Council has projected targets that are representative of all four regulatory programs. For this specific measure, the Council has
projected that it will renew 40,000 licenses. Using this target, during this quarter the Council would have met this measure by renewing 8,907 new licenses,
or 23% of the target.

* Varies by 5% or more from target.

Page d of 9

1,760.00 - 2,640.00



Efficiency/Output Measures with Cover Page and Update Explanation 3/30/2021 10:41:41 AM
86th Regular Session, Performance Reporting
Automated Budget and Evaluation System of Texas (ABEST)

Agency code: 510 Agency name: Behavioral Health Executive Council
2021 2021 2021 Percent of
Type/Strategy/Measure Target Actual YTD Annual Tareget Target Range
Output Measures

2 #LICENSE RENEWALS
Quarter 2 £,800.00 6,750.00 15,657.00 17792 % * 3,960.00 - 4,840.00
Explanation of Variance: FACTORS CAUSING THE VARIANCE:
The performance for this measure for the second quarter of FY 2021 exceeds the target. The Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council was created by the
86th Legislature effective 9/1/2019. However, regulatory authority over the four programs {psychologists, social workers, counselors, and marriage and

famnily therapists) did not transfer to the Council until 9/1/2020. The performance measures for FY 2021 are those that were established for the psychology
program only. Therefore, these targets are not representative of what the actual measures will be with the three additional programs.

HOW THE AGENCY PLANS TO DEAL WITH THE VARIANCE:

In its 2022-2023 LAR, the Council has projected targets that are representative of all four regulatory programs. For this specific measure, the Council has

projected that it will renew 40,000 licenses. Using this target, the agency would have fallen short of this measure by renewing 15,657 licenses to date, or
40% of the target.

2-1-1 _ENFORCEMENT
1 COMPLAINTS RESOLVED

* Vanes by 5% or more from target.

Page 5 of 9



Efficiency/Qutput Measures with Cover Page and Update Explanation 3/30/202] 10:41:41AM

86th Regular Session, Performance Reporting
Automated Budget and Evaluation System of Texas {ABEST)

Agency code: 510

Agency name: Behavioral Health Executive Council

2021 2021 2021 Percent of
Type/Strategy/Measure Target Actual YTD Annual Target Target Range
Output Measures
1 COMPLAINTS RESOLVED
Quarter 1 130.00 104.00 104.00 80.009% * 26.00 - 39.00

Explanation of Variance: FACTORS CAUSING THE VARIANCE

The performance for this measure for the first quarter of FY 2021 exceeds its target. The Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council was created by the
86th Legislature effective 9/1/2019. However, regulatory authority over the four programs {psychologists, social workers, counselors, and marriage and
family therapists) did not transfer to the Council until 9/1/2020. The performance measures for FY 2021 are those that were established for the psychology
program only. Therefore, these targets are not representative of what the actual measures will be with the three additional programs.

HOW THE AGENCY PLANS TO DEAL WITH THE VARIANCE

In its 2022-2023 LAR, the Council has projected targets that are representative of all four regulatory programs. For this specific measure, the Council has
projected that it will resolve 800 complaints. Using this target, during this quarter the Council would not have met this measure by resolving 104
complaints, or 13%. The Council’s investigators are still in a training state, trying to learn the statutes and rules of all four regulatory programs. However,
the number of complaints resolved during the last month of this quarter has significantly increased to 71 from the 12 that were resolved during the first
moath of the quarter. Additionally, there are 1,379 complaints pending, 200 of which the investigation has been completed and sent to the legal division

for review.

* Varies by 5% or more from target.

Page 6 of 9



Efficiency/Qutput Measures with Cover Page and Update Explanation 3/30/2021 10:41:41AM
B6th Regular Session, Performance Reporting
Automated Budget and Evaluation System of Texas (ABEST)

Agency code: 510 Agency name: Behavioral Health Executive Council
2021 2021 2021 Percent of
Type/Strategy/Measure Target Actual YTD Annual Target Target Range
Output Measures

1 COMPLAINTS RESOLVED
Quarter 2 130.00 120.00 224.00 17231% * 58.50 - 71.50
Explanation of Variance: FACTORS CAUSING THE VARIANCE:

The performance for this measure for the second quarter of FY 2021 exceeds the target. The Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council was created by the
86th Legislature effective 9/1/2019. However, regulatory authority over the four programs {psychologists, social workers, counselors, and marriage and
farnily therapists) did not transfer to the Council until 9/1/2020. The performance measures for FY 2021 are those that were established for the psychology
program cnly. Therefore, these targets are not representative of what the actual measures will be with the three additional programs.

HOW THE AGENCY PLANS TO DEAL WITH THE VARIANCE:

In its 2022-2023 LAR, the Council has projected targets that are representative of all four regulatory programs. For this specific measure, the Counci! has
projected that it will resalve 800 complaints. Using this target, the Council would not have met this measure by resolving 224 complaints year to date, or
28% of the target. The Council’s investigators and attorneys are still in a training state, trying to learn the statutes and rules of all four regulatory
programs. Additionally, the Council is still trying to fill four vacant investigator positions. As of the end of this quarter, there are 1,339 complaints
pending, 220 of which have since been closed and 145 of which the investigation has been completed and sent to the legal division for review.

Efficiency Measures

2-1-1 ENFORCEMENT
1 AVG TIME/COMPLAINT RESOLUTION

* Varies by 5% or more from target.

Page 7 of 9



Efficiency/Output Measures with Cover Page and Update Explanation 3/30/2021 10:41:41AM
86th Regular Session, Performance Reporting
Automated Budget and Evaluation System of Texas (ABEST)

Apgency code: 510 Agency name: Behavioral Health Executive Council
2021 2021 2021 Percent of
Type/Strategy/Measure Target Actual YTD Annual Tareget Target Range
Efficiency Measures
1 AVG TIME/COMPLAINT RESOLUTION
Quarter 1 275.00 1,190.00 1,190.00 43273 % * 261.25-288.75

Explanation of Variance: FACTORS CAUSING THE VARIANCE:

The performance for this measure for the first quarter of FY 2021 exceeds the target. The Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council was created by the
86th Legislature effective 9/1/2019. However, regulatory authority over the four programs (psychologists, social workers, counselors, and marriage and
family therapists) did not transfer to the Council until 9/1/2020. The performance measures for FY 2021 are those that were established for the psychology
program only. Therefore, these targets are not representative of what the actual measures will be with the three additional programs.

HOW THE AGENCY PLANS TO DEAL WITH THE VARIANCE:

In its 2022-2023 LAR, the Council has projected targets that are representative of all four regulatory programs. For this specific measure, the Council has
projecied an average complaint resolution time of 800 days. Using this target, during this quarter the Council would not have met this measure with an
average complaint resolution time of 1,190 days, or 149%. The Council’s investigators are still in a training state, trying to learn the statutes and rules ofall
four regulatory programs. Additionally, there were over 1,300 pending complaints that transferred over from HHSC, some of which dated back to FY 2003.
This backlog will take time to clear, and will inevitably cause a higher average complaint resolution time than originally anticipated.

* Varies by 5% or more from target.

Page 8 of 9



Efficiency/Qutput Measures with Cover Page and Update Explanation 3/30/2021 10:41:41AM

86th Regular Session, Performance Reporting
Automated Budget and Evaluation System of Texas (ABEST)

Agency code: 510

Agency name: Behavioral Health Executive Council

Type/Strategy/Measure

2021 2021 2021 Percent of
Target Actual YTD Annual Target

Target Range

Efficiency Measures

1 AVG TIME/COMPLAINT RESOLUTICN

Quarter 2

275.00 1,147.00 1,167.00 42436 % *

Explanation of Variance: FACTORS CAUSING THE VARIANCE:

The performance for this measure for the second quarter of FY 2021 exceeds the target. The Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council was created by the
86th Legislature effective 9/1/2019. However, regulatory authority over the four programs {psychologists, social workers, counselors, and marriage and
family therapists) did not transfer to the Council until 9/1/2020. The performance measures for FY 2021 are those that were established for the psychology
program only. Therefore, these targets are not representative of what the actual measures will be with the three additional programs.

HOW THE AGENCY PLANS TO DEAL WITH THE VARIANCE:

In its 2022-2023 LAR, the Council has projected targets that are representative of all four regulatory programs. For this specific measure, the Council has
projected an average complaint resolution time of 800 days. Using this target, during this quarter the Council would not have met this measure with an
average complaint resolution time of 1,167 days, or 146% of the target. The Council’s investigators and attomeys are still in a training state, trying to learn
the statutes and rules of all four regulatory programs. Additionally, there were over 1,300 pending complaints that transferred over from HHSC, some of
which dated back to FY 2008, This backlog will take time to clear, and will inevitably cause a higher average complaint resolution time than originally

anticipated.

* Varies by 5% or more from target.

Page 9 of 9

261.25 - 288.75



H.R.7105 - Johnny Isakson and David P. Roe, M.D. Veterans Health Care and Benefits Improvement
Act of 2020

ASPPB has been watching this legislation, in particular section 2002 (copied below) which may have
impact on the profession of psychology and licensing boards in the US.

Regarding VA psychologists being able to provide services interjurisdictionally. It is ASPPB’s
understanding that under the supremacy clause, psychologists employed by the VA can provide services
from one VA faculty to another facility regardless of where it was located. In other words, if a VA
psychologist is licensed in one state, they could provide services to a veteran in another state without
being licensed in the latter state. This allowance only applies to employed VA psychologists but not
consultant psychologists or local community psychologists and until a few years ago, services had to be
delivered to/from a VA facility.

In 2018, the VA adopted the Anywhere-to-Anywhere regulation to increase telehealth services and
allowed for VA health care providers, such as psychologists, to provide services from anywhere to
anywhere. As a result, along with providing services within a VA facility, a VA psychologist is allowed to
provide services from their home office to a veteran in his/her home. It is also possible for a clinician to
provide services into another state without having to be licensed in the state where the veteran is
located. However, this only applies to psychologists who are employed by the VA and are not consulting
psychologists or local community psychologists. Those psychologists have to follow licensing
requirements of each state and are not under the supremacy rule.

H.R.7105, as it is written applies only to psychologists, physicians, physician assistants, nurse
practitioners, audiologists. This regulation would expand the licensure portability of those professions
for a period of 3 years, to contract with the VA to conduct medical disability examinations to address the
backlog of compensation and pension (C&P) exams required for VA benefits determinations partly
attributed to the temporary suspensions resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic as well as the reduction
in use of VHA C&P examiners.

In addition, it appears that language would allow the VA to contract out examination services to other
entities. For example, if the VA contracted with an organization to provide examination services, then
that organization could hire psychologists to conduct those services. So not only are psychologists who
directly contract with the VA being utilized, but now it is possible that the psychologists subcontracted
with the VA are included.

ASPPB staff have had several conversations with a variety of individuals in an effort to clarify if the
contracted psychologists are to be considered VA employees and if they can practice under the
Anywhere-to-Anywhere supremacy clause. Unfortunately, these discussions have not provided any clear
guidance on these questions.

In addition, ASPPB has reached out to leadership within the VA in hopes of them being able to share
their interpretation of H.R.7105. We will keep you informed as we learn more on this issue.



SEC. 2002. MATTERS RELATING TO DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS MEDICAL
DISABILITY EXAMINATIONS.

(a) Temporary Clarification of Licensure Requirements for
Contractor Medical Professionals to Perform Medical Disability
Examinations for the Department of Veterans Affairs Under Pilot Program
for Use of Contract Physicians for Disability Examinations.--

(1) In general.--Subsection (c) of section 504 of the Veterans®
Benefits Improvements Act of 1996 (Public Law 104-275; 38 U.S.C.
5101 note) is amended to read as follows:

“7(c) Licensure of Contract Health Care Professionals.--

“7(1) In general.--Notwithstanding any law regarding the
licensure of health care professionals, a health care professional
described in paragraph (2) may conduct an examination pursuant to a
contract entered into under subsection (a) at any location in any
State, the District of Columbia, or a Commonwealth, territory, or
possession of the United States, so long as the examination is
within the scope of the authorized duties under such contract.

~7(2) Health care professional described.--A health care
professional described in this paragraph is a physician, physician
assistant, nurse practitioner, audiologist, or psychologist, who--

"7 (A) has a current unrestricted license to practice the
health care profession of the physician, physician assistant,
nurse practitioner, audiologist, or psychologist, as the case
maybe;

“7(B) is not barred from practicing such health care
profession in any State, the District of Columbia, or a

Commonwealth, territory, or possession of the United States;



and
“7(C) is performing authorized duties for the Department of

Veterans Affairs pursuant to a contract entered into under

subsection (a)."".

(2) Purpose.--The purpose of the amendment made by paragraph
(1) is to expand the license portability for physicians assistants,
nurse practitioners, audiologists, and psychologists to supplement
the capacity of employees of the Department to provide medical
examinations described in subsection (b).

(3) Rule of construction.--The amendment made by paragraph (1)
shall not be construed to affect the license portability for
physicians in effect under section 504(c) of such Act as in effect
on the day before the date of the enactment of this Act.

(4) Sunset.--On the date that is three years after the date of
the enactment of this Act, subsection (c) of such section shall
read as it read on the day before the date of the enactment of this
Act.

(b) Temporary Halt on Elimination of Medical Examiner Positions in
Department of Veterans Affairs.--The Secretary of Veterans Affairs
shall temporarily suspend the efforts of the Secretary in effect on the
day before the date of the enactment of this Act to eliminate medical
examiner positions in the Department of Veterans Affairs until the
number of individuals awaiting a medical examination with respect to
medical disability of the individuals for benefits under laws
administered by the Secretary that are carried out through the Under
Secretary for Benefits is equal to or less than the number of such

individuals who were awaiting such a medical examination with respect



to such purposes on March 1, 2020.
(c) Report on Provision of Medical Examinations.--

(1) In general.--Not later than 180 days after the date of the
enactment of this Act, the Secretary shall submit to the
appropriate committees of Congress a report on the provision of
medical examinations described in subsection (b) by the Department.

(2) Contents.--The report submitted under paragraph (1) shall
cover the following:

(A) How the Secretary will increase the capacity,
efficiency, and timeliness of physician assistants, nurse
practitioners, audiologists, and psychologists of the Veterans
Health Administration with respect to completing medical
examinations described in subsection (b).

(B) The total number of full-time equivalent employees
among all physician assistants, nurse practitioners,
audiologists, and psychologists needed for the increases
described in subparagraph (A).

(C) An assessment regarding the importance of retaining a
critical knowledge base within the Department for performing
medical examinations for veterans filing claims for
compensation under chapters 11 and 13 of title 38, United
States Code, including with respect to military sexual trauma,
post-traumatic stress disorder, traumatic brain injury, and
toxic exposure.

(3) Collaboration.--The Secretary shall collaborate with the
veterans community and stakeholders in the preparation of the

report required by paragraph (1).



(4) Appropriate committees of congress defined.--In this

subsection, the term ~“appropriate committees of Congress"" means--

(A) the Committee on Veterans®™ Affairs and the Committee on
Appropriations of the Senate; and

(B) the Committee on Veterans®™ Affairs and the Committee on

Appropriations of the House of Representatives.

(d) Comptroller General of the United States Review.--

(1) Review required.--Not later than 360 days after the date of
the enactment of this Act, the Comptroller General of the United
States shall commence a review of the implementation of the pilot
program authorized under subsection (a) of section 504 of the
Veterans® Benefits Improvements Act of 1996 (Public Law 104-275; 38
U.S.C. 5101 note).

(2) Elements.--The review conducted under paragraph (1) shall
include the following:

(A) An assessment of the use of subsection (c) of section

504 of such Act, as amended by subsection (a)(1) of this

section.

(B) Efforts to retain and recruit medical examiners as
employees of the Department.

(C) Use of telehealth for medical examinations described in
subsection (b) that are administered by the Department.

(e) Briefing on Recommendations of Comptroller General of the
United States.--Not later than 60 days after the date of the enactment
of this Act, the Secretary shall provide to the Committee on Veterans”
Affairs of the Senate and the Committee on Veterans® Affairs of the

House of Representatives a briefing on how the Secretary will implement



the recommendations of the Comptroller General of the United States
regarding--

(1) the monitoring of the training of providers of examinations
pursuant to contracts under section 504 of the Veterans® Benefits
Improvements Act of 1996 (Public Law 104-275; 38 U.S.C. 5101 note);
and

(2) ensuring such providers receive such training.

() Holding Underperforming Contract Medical Examiners
Accountable.--The Secretary shall take such actions as may be necessary
to hold accountable the providers of medical examinations pursuant to
contracts under section 504 of the Veterans®™ Benefits Improvements Act
of 1996 (Public Law 104-275; 38 U.S.C. 5101 note) who are
underperforming in the meeting of the needs of veterans through the
performance of medical examinations pursuant to such contracts.

, United States Code, for months beginning after the

date of the enactment of this Act.



From:

To:

Cc: Ohio Cracking Down on ESA Letters
Subject: Thursday, February 25, 2021 12:19:57 PM
Date:

Just an FYI...since Ohio is taking action on this issue, you may start to hear about it from your
fellow board members or licensees...I know I've heard this issue come up before in a board or

council meeting.

https://fox8.com/news/ohio-cracks-down-on-fraudulent-behaviors-surrounding-emotional-
support-animals/

Executive Director

Texas Behavioral Health Executive Council
333 Guadalupe St., Ste. 3-900

Austin, Texas 78701

(512) 305-7700

www.bhec.texas.gov


https://fox8.com/news/ohio-cracks-down-on-fraudulent-behaviors-surrounding-emotional-support-animals/
https://fox8.com/news/ohio-cracks-down-on-fraudulent-behaviors-surrounding-emotional-support-animals/

View in browser

THE PSYCHOLOGY
INTERJURISDICTIONAL

COMPACT
March 2, 2021 Update

Hello all,

We would like to welcome on North Carolina as an effective PSYPACT participating state.
Beginning on March 1, 2021 you may now practice into and out of North Carolina under
the authority of PSYPACT. The PSYPACT staff are diligently processing all applications
that have selected North Carolina as their home state.

As the 2021 legislative session continues, we wanted to share a few updates regarding
PSYPACT. To date, PSYPACT legislation has been introduced in:

Alabama
Connecticut
Indiana
lowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Maryland
Minnesota
New Mexico
Ohio

South Carolina
Tennessee
Washington

Additionally, there is carryover legislation from the 2020 legislative session active in the
District of Columbia and New Jersey. To monitor the progress of PSYPACT legislation, you
can visit the PSYPACT website HERE.

Thank you for your continued support,

Your PSYPACT Team

Interested in practicing under PSYPACT?
Visit the PSYPACT website (www.psypact.orq) for

information about PSYPACT applications.
Click HERE to start your application to practice telepsychology under
PSYPACT.
Click HERE to start your application to practice temporarily under PSYPACT.



https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.site-ym.com%2Fview.aspx%3FmessageId=c006fd68c5b64ff5a5c3ee262b867c4d/1/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/oOzUM4TSbUZDk_8SbcfY42wHwA0=203
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.org%2Fpage%2Fpsypactmap/1/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/QOgMOEKCgy7JyjBdHy0-bLALbKE=203
http://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/http:%2F%2Fwww.psypact.org/1/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/JxOTY8VLo26Q7nNt1F-hL5rY7YI=203
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.org%2Fpage%2Ftelepsychology/1/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/tJyc5QxhsgsO2OI8ezD0zYYOoH8=203
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.org%2Fpage%2Ftemporarypractice/1/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/KjVsZDA1BCayrtMSae7njZZ7H-w=203
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.site-ym.com%2Fwww.psypact.org/1/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/rk-CDlqPzytUfes57JBWbE-fkc4=203

IMPORTANT PSYPACT APPLICATION INFORMATION

IF YOU HAVE NOT STARTED AN APPLICATION:

There are two types of applications that must be completed in order to practice under the
authority of PSYPACT - one designated for telepsychology and one designated for temporary
in-person, face-to-face practice. Psychologists licensed in PSYPACT states can choose to
apply for either application or both. Each way of practice requires a separate application and
has different application requirements. Visit the PSYPACT website at www.psypact.org to learn
more about how to start your PSYPACT application(s) and what to expect.

o To practice telepsychology under the authority of PSYPACT, a
psychologist licensed in a PSYPACT state will be required to obtain an Authority to
Practice Interjurisdictional Telepsychology (APIT) from the PSYPACT Commission.
One requirement of the APIT is that a psychologist must have an active E.Passport
Certificate from ASPPB. The application fee for the APIT is $40. The E.Passport
application fee (normally $400) has been temporarily waived until December 31, 2020.
There is a $100 annual renewal fee for the E.Passport.

o To conduct temporary in-person, face-
to-face practice (for 30 days per calendar year in each PSYPACT state) under the
authority of PSYPACT, a psychologist licensed in a PSYPACT state will be required to
obtain a Temporary Authorization to Practice (TAP) from the PSYPACT
Commission. One requirement of the TAP is that a psychologist must have an
active Interjurisdictional Practice Certificate (IPC) from ASPPB. The application fee
for the TAP is $40. The IPC application fee is $200 with a $50 annual renewal fee.

AFTER YOU HAVE STARTED AN APPLICATION:

Thank you for your application! Staff is working hard to process all incoming applications as
quickly as possible. Due to the high volume in applications, there may be delays in processing,
but we are always here to help! Contact us at info@psypact.org with any questions you may
have. Additionally, here are some important tips regarding the application process:

e Transcripts:
- Electronic transcripts are accepted. Official transcripts can be sent to
transcripts@asppb.org.
- You will NOT be able to Submit for Review until Credentialing staff has received and
uploaded your official transcripts to your application(s). We are receiving a high number
of transcripts at this time and are uploading in the order they are received. If you
already banked your transcripts, Credentialing staff will upload your transcripts in the
order your application was initiated.
- If you already had your transcripts sent to ASPPB and they may have come under a
different name, please reach out to transcripts@asppb.org if your transcripts have not
yet been uploaded.

e EPPP:
- You do NOT need to request an Official EPPP Score Transfer.
- When completing the Examination section of your application, we do need enough
information regarding when you took the exam to locate your score in the repository. If
additional information is needed to locate your score, Credentialing staff will contact
you.

e Education:
- When completing the Education section of your application, please note you only need
to complete the Information on Degree portion. You do NOT need to complete the
Verification of Degree Program or Submit for Verification by Institution portions. You will
save the Information on Degree as Incomplete and the Education section as Complete.



https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.org%2F/1/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/uHp9KWfwl6jA3BqcpgnHXYGletY=203
mailto:info@psypact.org
mailto:transcripts@asppb.org
mailto:transcripts@asppb.org

e Credentials Bank:
- If you have previously started a Credentials Bank record, please note you will need to
initiate an application through the Select an Activity feature on the right panel of your
My Activity Summary page.
- Not all sections of the Credentials Bank will be applicable. Once an application is
initiated, you will see the sections of the Credentials Bank that apply.

e Supervised Training:
- Verification of supervised training experience is not a requirement of PSYPACT. You
do not have to provide information regarding your practicum, internship or post-doctoral
experience for your PSYPACT application(s).

e Home State:
-At this time, PSYPACT requires that a psychologist be physically located in their Home
State of licensure while providing telepsychological services. For the practice of
telepsychology under PSYPACT, Home State is the PSYPACT state where you are
licensed to practice and physically located when telepsychological services are
delivered.

After initiating an application, you will complete the application workflow and submit for review
once your official transcripts have been uploaded. E.Passport and IPC applications are
reviewed by the ASPPB Mobility Committee. Upon receiving the E.Passport and/or IPC, an
APIT and/or TAP application will immediately be started on your behalf. PSYPACT staff will be
in contact with you to let you know you will need to declare a Home State for practice under
PSYPACT. After doing so, APIT and TAP applications are submitted for review by the
PSYPACT Commission. Upon receiving the APIT and/or TAP, you will then be able to start
practicing under the authority of PSYPACT.

HAVE QUESTIONS? WE'RE HERE TO HELP!

Contact us at info@psypact.org with any questions you have or visit the PSYPACT website at
www.psypact.org.

PSYPACT

Psychology Interjurisdictional Compact (PSYPACT)
Address: 210 Market Road Tyrone, Georgia 30290
Web:
Email:

If you wish to unsubscribe:



mailto:info@psypact.org
http://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/http:%2F%2Fwww.psypact.org/2/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/DKzp9kCRBtYZ0HDznsCbXc6KA5Y=203
http://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/http:%2F%2Fwww.psypact.org/3/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/ey0LdKxb5DhIGhBVmfwKF0VNtsY=203
mailto:info@psypact.org
https://psypact.site-ym.com/general/opt.asp?e=general.counsel@tsbep.texas.gov
https://psypact.site-ym.com/general/opt.asp?e=general.counsel@tsbep.texas.gov
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.site-ym.com%2Fwww.psypact.orf/1/01000177f496447b-e0625fbb-41b4-4a66-ab8d-17c1bb2e97c9-000000/Yw5l5pD4sGsVLZer6Gx6BQM8-14=203

Subject: PSYPACT Update 3.30.2021 Alabama and Kentucky Enact PSYPACT

View in browser

THE PSYCHOLOGY
INTERJURISDICTIONAL

COMPACT
March 30, 2021 Update

Hello all,

We are excited to announce Alabama and Kentucky have enacted PSYPACT

legislation! Governor Kay lvey signed AL SB 102 into law on March 18, 2021, and the
legislation will become effective on June 1, 2021. Governor Andy Beshear signed KY HB
38 into law on March 18, 2021, and the legislation will become effective approximately the
end of June 2021. Alabama (effective June 1, 2021) and Kentucky (effective approximately
end of June 2021) join other PSYPACT participating states including Arizona, Colorado,
Delaware, District of Columbia, Georgia, lllinois, Missouri, Nebraska, Nevada, New
Hampshire, North Carolina, Oklahoma, Texas, Utah, Pennsylvania and Virginia.
Applications for Alabama and Kentucky will begin being accepted on their respective
effective dates, Alabama (effective June 1, 2021) and Kentucky (effective approximately
end of June 2021).

As the 2021 legislative session continues, we wanted to share a few updates regarding
PSYPACT. To date, PSYPACT legislation has been introduced in:

Connecticut
Indiana

lowa

Kansas
Maine
Maryland
Minnesota
Ohio

Rhode Island
South Carolina
Tennessee
Vermont
Washington

Additionally, there is carryover legislation from the 2020 legislative session active in New
Jersey. To monitor the progress of PSYPACT legislation, you can visit the PSYPACT
website HERE.


https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.site-ym.com%2Fview.aspx%3FmessageId=d090aab5dd404775bb764bb6c404208f/1/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/2Ooh0Ioo-9oqrtlQsXo2QMrKUv0=207
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.org%2Fpage%2Fpsypactmap/1/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/g0b8uElVgth9VfJfEgqXrcJQPxE=207
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.site-ym.com%2Fwww.psypact.org/1/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/Ak5-wVayBHFeMFvBIA_TNCNVcH0=207

Thank you for your continued interest and support of PSYPACT.
-Your PSYPACT Team

Interested in practicing under PSYPACT?
Visit the PSYPACT website (www.psypact.orqg) for

information about PSYPACT applications.
Click HERE to start your application to practice telepsychology under
PSYPACT.
Click HERE to start your application to practice temporarily under PSYPACT.

IMPORTANT PSYPACT APPLICATION INFORMATION

IF YOU HAVE NOT STARTED AN APPLICATION:

There are two types of applications that must be completed in order to practice under the
authority of PSYPACT - one designated for telepsychology and one designated for temporary
in-person, face-to-face practice. Psychologists licensed in PSYPACT states can choose to
apply for either application or both. Each way of practice requires a separate application and
has different application requirements. Visit the PSYPACT website at www.psypact.org to learn
more about how to start your PSYPACT application(s) and what to expect.

o To practice telepsychology under the authority of PSYPACT, a
psychologist licensed in a PSYPACT state will be required to obtain an Authority to
Practice Interjurisdictional Telepsychology (APIT) from the PSYPACT Commission.
One requirement of the APIT is that a psychologist must have an active E.Passport
Certificate from ASPPB. The application fee for the APIT is $40. The E.Passport
application fee (normally $400) has been temporarily waived until December 31, 2020.
There is a $100 annual renewal fee for the E.Passport.

o To conduct temporary in-person, face-
to-face practice (for 30 days per calendar year in each PSYPACT state) under the
authority of PSYPACT, a psychologist licensed in a PSYPACT state will be required to
obtain a Temporary Authorization to Practice (TAP) from the PSYPACT
Commission. One requirement of the TAP is that a psychologist must have an
active Interjurisdictional Practice Certificate (IPC) from ASPPB. The application fee
for the TAP is $40. The IPC application fee is $200 with a $50 annual renewal fee.

AFTER YOU HAVE STARTED AN APPLICATION:

Thank you for your application! Staff is working hard to process all incoming applications as
quickly as possible. Due to the high volume in applications, there may be delays in processing,
but we are always here to help! Contact us at info@psypact.org with any questions you may
have. Additionally, here are some important tips regarding the application process:

e Transcripts:
- Electronic transcripts are accepted. Official transcripts can be sent to
transcripts@asppb.org.
- You will NOT be able to Submit for Review until Credentialing staff has received and
uploaded your official transcripts to your application(s). We are receiving a high number
of transcripts at this time and are uploading in the order they are received. If you
already banked your transcripts, Credentialing staff will upload your transcripts in the
order your application was initiated.



http://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/http:%2F%2Fwww.psypact.org%2F/1/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/E0cJsOg25ELKs0ydBnx2qxjWyFY=207
http://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/http:%2F%2Fwww.psypact.org/1/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/3067IrhkDrS9CwjQVHWVhyXicTE=207
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.org%2Fpage%2Ftelepsychology/1/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/FrD32lX8WPyBN_FBIGw-3xP2FNM=207
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.org%2Fpage%2Ftemporarypractice/1/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/9iAR_mGHqLg9eymEa08OzbiUEG0=207
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.org%2F/1/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/41cLkpmJm6jePGJQPMLsUX1ZDjs=207
mailto:info@psypact.org
mailto:transcripts@asppb.org

- If you already had your transcripts sent to ASPPB and they may have come under a
different name, please reach out to transcripts@asppb.org if your transcripts have not
yet been uploaded.

e EPPP:
- You do NOT need to request an Official EPPP Score Transfer.
- When completing the Examination section of your application, we do need enough
information regarding when you took the exam to locate your score in the repository. If
additional information is needed to locate your score, Credentialing staff will contact
you.

e Education:
- When completing the Education section of your application, please note you only need
to complete the Information on Degree portion. You do NOT need to complete the
Verification of Degree Program or Submit for Verification by Institution portions. You will
save the Information on Degree as Incomplete and the Education section as Complete.

e Credentials Bank:
- If you have previously started a Credentials Bank record, please note you will need to
initiate an application through the Select an Activity feature on the right panel of your
My Activity Summary page.
- Not all sections of the Credentials Bank will be applicable. Once an application is
initiated, you will see the sections of the Credentials Bank that apply.

e Supervised Training:
- Verification of supervised training experience is not a requirement of PSYPACT. You
do not have to provide information regarding your practicum, internship or post-doctoral
experience for your PSYPACT application(s).

e Home State:
-At this time, PSYPACT requires that a psychologist be physically located in their Home
State of licensure while providing telepsychological services. For the practice of
telepsychology under PSYPACT, Home State is the PSYPACT state where you are
licensed to practice and physically located when telepsychological services are
delivered.

After initiating an application, you will complete the application workflow and submit for review
once your official transcripts have been uploaded. E.Passport and IPC applications are
reviewed by the ASPPB Mobility Committee. Upon receiving the E.Passport and/or IPC, an
APIT and/or TAP application will immediately be started on your behalf. PSYPACT staff will be
in contact with you to let you know you will need to declare a Home State for practice under
PSYPACT. After doing so, APIT and TAP applications are submitted for review by the
PSYPACT Commission. Upon receiving the APIT and/or TAP, you will then be able to start
practicing under the authority of PSYPACT.

HAVE QUESTIONS? WE'RE HERE TO HELP!

Contact us at info@psypact.org with any questions you have or visit the PSYPACT website at
www.psypact.org.

PSYPACT

Psychology Interjurisdictional Compact (PSYPACT)
Address: 210 Market Road Tyrone, Georgia 30290
Web:
Email:



mailto:transcripts@asppb.org
mailto:info@psypact.org
http://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/http:%2F%2Fwww.psypact.org/2/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/K6h55oOzQyQljbT6Td-KFngXN5Y=207
http://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/http:%2F%2Fwww.psypact.org/3/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/W0VLiCFK7pl3sEyIJ_n4llIt8xg=207
mailto:info@psypact.org
https://458rl1jp.r.us-east-1.awstrack.me/L0/https:%2F%2Fpsypact.site-ym.com%2Fwww.psypact.orf/1/0100017884d9f550-4a91ab0c-7ffd-44e5-a9cb-3d77c1b49d45-000000/KTnUq9x7cXGO0kVyxrxyC1m35_c=207

If you wish to unsubscribe:



https://psypact.site-ym.com/general/opt.asp?e=general.counsel@tsbep.texas.gov
https://psypact.site-ym.com/general/opt.asp?e=general.counsel@tsbep.texas.gov

From:

To: For CPQ Accepting/Recognizing Jurisdictions: ASPPB Mobility Program Missing Documentation Affidavit
Subject: Wednesday, March 3, 2021 7:49:03 AM

Date: Missing Documentation Affidavit 3.2.2021.pdf

Attachments:

To those jurisdictions that currently either accept or recognize the Certificate of Professional
Qualification in Psychology (CPQ):

In rare cases, a CPQ applicant may find it impossible to secure supporting documentation for their
application (e.g., supervisor attestation, proof of internship). For instance, a supervisor may no
longer be available, documents may have been misplaced or destroyed, or may have become
indecipherable (e.g., microfiche, early photocopies, etc.), or a licensing board may have shredded
these documents in accordance with their record retention policies. The ASPPB Mobility Committee
wishes to be of assistance in those rare instances.

The ASPPB Mobility Committee has created a form for licensing board completion that we hope will
assist applicants in the above circumstances. If an applicant has indicated that the materials supplied
during their initial licensure application are no longer available or are not usable, the attached form
requests psychology licensing board verification that the licensee, licensed in a specific month/year
would have met the eligibility criteria of the CPQ (as listed on the attached fillable PDF form) at the
time of initial licensure.

We value your feedback and ongoing participation in this program. As such, we are providing an
explanation and copy of the referenced form such that if you receive a request for its completion in
the future, you can be confident that it is part of the CPQ application. Please take a moment to
review the attached form and offer any feedback you feel appropriate.

Thank you for your continued participation in ASPPB’s Mobility Program.

Taja S. Slaughter, MPA

Director of Credentialing

Address: PO Box 849, Tyrone, GA 30290
Office: 678-216-1186

Fax: 678-216-1184

Email: tslaughter@asppb.org

Web: www.asppb.org

To unsubscribe from the ASPPB-ADMINS list, click the following link:

http://listserv.asppb.org/scripts/wa.exe?
TICKET=NzM30DgyIGRpYWS5ILm1vb3JIQEJIRUMuVEVYQVMuRO09WIEFTUFBCLUF


mailto:tslaughter@asppb.org
http://www.asppb.org/
http://listserv.asppb.org/scripts/wa.exe?TICKET=NzM3ODgyIGRpYW5lLm1vb3JlQEJIRUMuVEVYQVMuR09WIEFTUFBCLUFETUlOU%2Fw1YbKdDm03&c=SIGNOFF
http://listserv.asppb.org/scripts/wa.exe?TICKET=NzM3ODgyIGRpYW5lLm1vb3JlQEJIRUMuVEVYQVMuR09WIEFTUFBCLUFETUlOU%2Fw1YbKdDm03&c=SIGNOFF

~ ASPPB

Association of State and
Provincial Psychology Boards

Please indicate if a

MOBILITY PROGRAM

Missing Documentation Affidavit

licensee would have, at the time

of initial licensure in

, provided verified documentation of and met the following

criteria:

OvesOno
OvesOno

O ves Ono
O ves Owno

Signature:

A minimum of 3,000 hours total of supervised experience (internship and postdoc)

At least 1,500 of the minimum 3,000 hours was completed as a post-doctoral supervised
experience

Each experience was completed in no less that ten (10) months and no more than 24 months

Each experience included at least one (1) hour per week of individual face-to-face supervision
with a licensed psychologist

Print Name:

Title:

Date:

Please return this form to Taja S. Slaughter, Director of Credentialing, via email to
tslaughter@asppb.org or via postal mail to PO Box 849, Tyrone, GA 30290

CREDENTIALS BANK /PLUS /1PC / E. PASSPORT / GPQ / EPPP SCORE TRANSFER

PO Box 849 Tyrone, Georgia 30290 - Phone: (678) 216-1175 - Fax: 678-216-1184 - www.asppb.net « psypro@asppb.org




http://www.asppb.net/

mailto:psypro@asppb.org

mailto:tslaughter@asppb.org



		Print Name: 

		Title: 

		Date: 

		Licensing Board Name: 

		MM/YYYY of initial license: 

		Group1: Off

		Group2: Off

		Group3: Off

		Group4: Off






ETUIOU%2Fw1YbKdDmO03&c=SIGNOFF


http://listserv.asppb.org/scripts/wa.exe?TICKET=NzM3ODgyIGRpYW5lLm1vb3JlQEJIRUMuVEVYQVMuR09WIEFTUFBCLUFETUlOU%2Fw1YbKdDm03&c=SIGNOFF

Please indicate if a

MOBILITY PROGRAM

Missing Documentation Affidavit

licensee would have, at the time

of initial licensure in

, provided verified documentation of and met the following

criteria:

OvesOno
OvesOno

O ves Ono
O ves Ono

Signature:

A minimum of 3,000 hours total of supervised experience (internship and postdoc)

At least 1,500 of the minimum 3,000 hours was completed as a post-doctoral supervised
experience

Each experience was completed in no less that ten (10) months and no more than 24 months

Each experience included at least one (1) hour per week of individual face-to-face supervision
with a licensed psychologist

Print Name:

Title:

Date:

Please return this form to Taja S. Slaughter, Director of Credentialing, via email to
tslaughter@asppb.org or via postal mail to PO Box 849, Tyrone, GA 30290

CREDENTIALS BANK/PLUS /1PC / E. PASSPORT / GPQ / EPPP SCORE TRANSFER

PO Box 849 Tyrone, Georgia 30290 - Phone: (678) 216-1175 - Fax: 678-216-1184 - www.asppb.net « psypro@asppb.org



http://www.asppb.net/
mailto:psypro@asppb.org
mailto:tslaughter@asppb.org

From: ASPPB BARC
Sent: Wednesday, March 17, 2021 4:22 PM

Subject: FW: Public Notice: Modifications of Accreditation Processes
Good evening,

Please see the below message from APA’s Office of Program Consultation and Accreditation
regarding modifications to the accreditation processes.

Thanks,
Janet

Janet P. Orwig, MBA, CAE

Associate Executive Officer for Member Services
Address: P.O. Box 849, Tyrone, GA 30290

Cell: 404-788-8354

Office: 678-216-1188

Fax: 678-216-1176

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: Please be advised this message (including any attachments) may contain
confidential, proprietary, privileged and/or private information. The information is intended to be for
the use of the individual or entity designated above. Any distribution, dissemination, duplication
through electronic, hard copy, Internet, yet to be invented technologies, or forwarding of the above
communication, without the express permission of the author, is prohibited and may violate applicable
laws, including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient of this
message, please notify the sender immediately, and delete the message and any attachments.



March 17, 2021

The APA is required to undergo periodic review to maintain recognition as an
accrediting agency by the United States Department of Education (ED or
Department) and the Council of Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA). The
APA’s scope of recognition includes the accreditation of doctoral programs in
health service psychology (i.e., clinical, counseling, and school psychology,
combinations of two or more of these practice areas and other developed
practice areas in health service psychology), doctoral internship programs in
health service psychology, and postdoctoral residency programs in health
service psychology. As such, accreditation standards and procedures must
align with the recognition criteria of both the ED and the CHEA. Two recent
events have led to changes in APA accreditation documents. These events are
comprised of: 1) a review of the APA for renewal of recognition and 2)

regulatory changes made by the ED for all recognized accrediting agencies.

In accordance with the APA “Policies for Accreditation Governance” and the
US Department of Education regulations for notice and comment, the CoA is
providing additional information and making the changes available for a period

of public notice at http://apps.apa.org/accredcomment/.



https://click.info.apa.org/?qs=de8ce4fe20a42dc9b4c13cc61c2dea84a730f74d2161dd0d7e343ffedaaf07506823cf298b5e3a62574bb464f1932f99624229c258b06581
https://click.info.apa.org/?qs=de8ce4fe20a42dc9ab2efecbc904d36691a962049a0bff8def25043fac3ce2aba9ff657127318d1063ce71e6117440d093b56f6c112847d7

Please contact the office with questions at APAaccred@apa.org or by calling
(202) 336-5979.

Sincerely,

APA Office of Program Consultation and Accreditation

f ®© ©

© American Psychological Association
Office of Program Consultation and Accreditation
750 First Street, NE, Washington, DC 20002
T (202) 336-5979
F (202) 336-5978
apaaccred@apa.org

You are receiving this message as an identified constituency or party interested in the accreditation of professional
psychology programs. Accredited programs and others served by us opt-in to communications from the Office of

Program Consultation and Accreditation. However, if you are no longer an appropriate contact, please notify us by
sending an email message to apaacred@apa.org or by calling (202) 336-5979.

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

To unsubscribe from the ASPPB-ADMINS list, click the following link:

http://listserv.asppb.org/scripts/wa.exe?TICKET=NzM3ODk2IERhcnJIbC5TcGlua3NAQkhFQy5URVhBUy5
HT1YgQVNQUEItQURNSUSTIKZ6rnyKt%2Bar&c=SIGNOFF



mailto:APAaccred@apa.org?subject=
https://click.info.apa.org/?qs=de8ce4fe20a42dc9986acb542c308a74e7ad4862ea0a73c894c9bdf5218d8cea5a20037467833a44f9814db5a730e10c71a8f0b28f960be3
mailto:apaaccred@apa.org?subject=
mailto:apaacred@apa.org?subject=
http://listserv.asppb.org/scripts/wa.exe?TICKET=NzM3ODk2IERhcnJlbC5TcGlua3NAQkhFQy5URVhBUy5HT1YgQVNQUEItQURNSU5TIKZ6rnyKt%2Bar&c=SIGNOFF
http://listserv.asppb.org/scripts/wa.exe?TICKET=NzM3ODk2IERhcnJlbC5TcGlua3NAQkhFQy5URVhBUy5HT1YgQVNQUEItQURNSU5TIKZ6rnyKt%2Bar&c=SIGNOFF
https://click.info.apa.org/?qs=de8ce4fe20a42dc9a44b33d17e4b8f69feb8696d776f7ea6564e2dbe599783eac1cadc2de76ea38c2e084dfcd81f5027b0e3ccc7a8f2903a
https://click.info.apa.org/?qs=de8ce4fe20a42dc9b33fd229dea8d25cc9abe549e3bcf0b5c91df45ce1512697ccce00fbe69964b77579171131b7d1e9e5febc30f4b1a89b
https://click.info.apa.org/?qs=de8ce4fe20a42dc940fc6f17a534ce516382047de8229ceb3ce581fcab059a391783afb2dadba1fe619698d0aa084e4ddd1b9512cbe7bc26
https://click.info.apa.org/?qs=de8ce4fe20a42dc9c5d63bd80152591e0cb1d493bf481ad85d19ced362c1df4b079ece56dc1122cd38f8f52cf84585fb4ad14eadfc3e77e0

Public Notice: Modifications of Accreditation Processes

The APA is required to undergo periodic review to maintain recognition as an accrediting
agency by the United States Department of Education (ED or Department) and the Council of
Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA). The APA’s scope of recognition includes the
accreditation of doctoral programs in health service psychology (i.e., clinical, counseling, and
school psychology, combinations of two or more of these practice areas and other developed
practice areas in health service psychology), doctoral internship programs in health service
psychology, and postdoctoral residency programs in health service psychology. As such,
accreditation standards and procedures must align with the recognition criteria of both the ED
and the CHEA. Two recent events have led to changes in APA accreditation documents. These
events are comprised of: 1) a review of the APA for renewal of recognition and 2) regulatory
changes made by the ED for all recognized accrediting agencies.

Review of the APA for Recognition as an Accrediting Body

The APA submitted a petition in January 2020 to ED, as required for renewal of recognition.
As part of the review process, ED staff have informed the APA that there is a concern with the
use of a phrase in the APA Accreditation Operating Procedures (AOP). The phrase of concern
states that the APA Commission on Accreditation (CoA) considers probation to be an adverse
action.

Department regulations do not incorporate probation in the listing of decisions that are
considered adverse actions (please see definitions of adverse actions listed in CFR 34 §602.3).
Since the actions listed as adverse in the regulations do not include the term probation, the
statement in the AOP is therefore, incongruent. The APA CoA has reviewed the AOP and has
approved a revision to a sentence located in AOP sections 8.2.3 D, 8.2.e [ and 8.2.e P where
this is stated. The sentence, presented in redline font to highlight the change, removes the
phrase, adverse action. A copy of the three sections where the sentence is located is provided in
Appendix A, following this introduction. In addition, a copy of the entire AOP, revised to
include these changes is also presented and may be accessed using this link (will add link to
revised AOP). These changes do not alter CoA review processes for programs placed on
accredited, on probation status, nor do they impact CoA policies or procedures for adverse
actions.

New ED Regulations

The ED has released revised procedures and criteria for recognizing accrediting agencies that
are effective for reports and submissions following July 1, 2020. As a result of the new
procedures and criteria, two areas of modification to APA CoA procedures have been identified
to ensure consistency with ED regulations. These two areas are in the following sections: CFR
34 § 602.25 Due Process and § 602.26 Notification of Accrediting Decisions.

1. CFR 34 § 602.25 Due Process

In CFR 34 § 602.25 the word, “reverses”, has been removed from the choices for appeal panel
decisions. In addition, specific requirements have been inserted into the section when an appeal



panel remands an adverse action to the decision-making body (e.g., CoA) for further
consideration. In this case, the appeals panel must “explain the basis for a decision that differs
from that of the original decision-making body.” Also, in the case of a remanded decision of
the appeals panel, the decision-making body is to act in a manner that is consistent with the
appeals panel's decision(s) and follow provided instructions.

The changes to CFR 34 § 602.25 required alterations to the AOP and to one of the
Implementing Regulations (IR) that describes the role of the appeal panel. Specifically, the
word “reversal” has been removed from AOP § 2.5 Decision and Report of Appeal Panel. A
copy of this section of the AOP is provided in Appendix B following this introduction. A copy
of the entire AOP, revised to include this change is presented and may be accessed using this
link (will add link to AOP). IR 5.1, which delineates hearing procedures for the APA appeals
panel, has been modified to reflect changes in CFR 34 § 602.25. IR 5.1 is presented in
Appendix C following this introduction.

2. §602.26 Notification of Accrediting Decisions.

CFR 34 § 602.26 lists requirements for the provision of written notice of accreditation
decisions. Changes made to this section of the Department’s regulations include modifications
of timing of selected notices and thereby, required changes to the IRs that describe procedures
of such notification. The changes to the ED regulations now require the accrediting body to
notify “the Secretary, the appropriate State licensing or authorizing agency, and the appropriate
accrediting agencies” of final decisions to place a program on accredited, on probation status or
when an initiated adverse action (i.e., withdrawal, denial, revocation) occurs at the same time
the program is notified” (CFR 34 § 602.26 XX). Plus, public notice of the decision is required
within one day of notifying the program and the program is required to disclose such decisions
to current and prospective students within “seven business days of receipt” of the notification
from the accrediting agency. Similarly, notification of voluntary withdrawals from accredited
are to be made within 10 business days of receipt and accreditation lapses on the part of a
program are also to be disclosed within 10 days.

Changes in notification procedures, including dates, were required for the following IRs: IR
D.8-2, Procedures for Notification of CoA Actions in Accordance with the Secretary of
Education’s Standards for Recognition of Accrediting Agencies and IR 8.5, Implementation
Procedure for Notification by the Commission on Accreditation of Final Decisions of
Denial/Revocation of Accreditation, Denial of a Site Visit, or Probation to the U.S. Secretary of
Education, Appropriate State Licensing Agency, and Appropriate Institutional Accrediting
Agency. IR 8.2 and IR 8.5 are presented in Appendix D following this introduction.

Public Notification Policies for Accreditation Governance

In accordance with the APA “Policies for Accreditation Governance” and the US Department
of Education regulations for notice and comment, the CoA is providing additional information
and making the changes available for a 30-day period of public notice.



On behalf of the CoA, thank you in advance for your review and comments. Please contact the
APA Office of Program Consultation and Accreditation with any questions or concerns.
Address: 750 First Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20002-4242; Phone: (202) 336-5979;

Email: apaaccred@apa.org; Web: https://www.accreditation.apa.org/




Appendix A

Accreditation Operating Procedures § 8.2.e D (for Doctoral Programs)

(e) “Accredited, on probation” isconsidered-by-the-CoA-to-be-an-adverseaction—1t serves as
notice to the program, its students, and the public that in the professional judgment of the CoA,

the accredited program is not currently consistent with the SoA and may have its accreditation
revoked.

Prior to this decision, the program will be given an opportunity to show cause why it should not
be placed on probation by providing a written response to the issues of concern. The program’s
show cause response will be reviewed two CoA meetings after the program was provided the
show cause notice. Programs that are still not in compliance at the time of the CoA’s review are
then placed on “accredited, on probation” status.

Following placement on “accredited, on probation” status, the program is given a time by
which to comply with the issues identified by the CoA in the probation decision. Doctoral
programs must provide a response to the issues within four CoA meetings after the probation
decision was reached.

Accreditation Operating Procedures § 8.2.e I (for Internship Programs)

(e) “Accredited, on probation” is-considered-by-the-CoA-to-be-anadverse-action—ttserves as

notice to the program, its interns, and the public that in the professional judgment of the CoA,
the accredited program is not currently consistent with the SoA and may have its accreditation
revoked. Prior to this decision, the program will be given an opportunity to show cause why it
should not be placed on probation by providing a written response to the issues of concern. The
program’s show cause response will be reviewed two CoA meetings after the program was
provided the show cause notice. Programs that are still not in compliance at the time of the
CoA’s review are then placed on “accredited, on probation” status.

Following placement on “accredited, on probation” status, the program is given a time certain
in which to come into compliance with the issues identified by the CoA in the probation
decision. Internship programs must provide a response to the issues within two CoA meetings
after the probation decision was reached. In the case of a school psychology internship
program that is 10 months in length, the program must provide a response within one CoA
meeting after the probation decision was reached.

Accreditation Operating Procedures § 8.2.e P (for Postdoctoral Residency Programs)

(e) “Accredited, on probation” is-censidered-by-the- CoA-to-be-an-adverse-action—lt-serves as

notice to the program, its residents, and the public that in the professional judgment of the CoA,
the accredited program is not currently consistent with the SoA and may have its accreditation
revoked. Prior to this decision, the program will be given an opportunity to show cause why it
should not be placed on probation by providing a written response to the issues of concern. The
program’s show cause response will be reviewed two CoA meetings after the program was



provided the show cause notice. Programs that are still not in compliance at the time of the
CoA’s review are then placed on “accredited, on probation” status.

Following placement on “accredited, on probation” status, the program is given a time
certain in which to come into compliance with the issues identified by the CoA in the
probation decision. Postdoctoral residency programs must provide a response to the issues
within two CoA meetings after the probation decision was reached.



Appendix B
Accreditation Operating Procedures § 2.5 Decision and Report of Appeal Panel

2.5 Decision and Report of Appeal Panel

The CoA’s decision should be affirmed unless (a) there was a procedural error

and adherence to the proper procedures would dictate a different decision; or(b) based on the
record before it, the CoA’s decision was plainly wrong or without evidence to support it. The
appeal panel has the options of (a) upholding the CoA decision, (b) amending erreversing the
CoA decision, or (c) remanding the matter to the CoA to address specific designated issues
before final action.

The report of the appeal panel will state its decision and the basis of that decision based on the
record before the panel. The report of the panel will be addressed to the president of the APA
and sent within 30 days of the hearing. Copies will be provided to the chief executive officer of
the doctoral program’s host institution or to the responsible administrative officer of an
internship or postdoctoral residency program, the chair of the CoA, the chair of the Board of
Educational Affairs, and the Office of Program Consultation and Accreditation.



Appendix C
D.5. Regulations related to appeal procedures’’
D.5-1. APA Accreditation Appeal Panel Hearing Procedures
(Board of Educational Affairs, October 2000; revised October 2010, revised for Public Notice,
February 2021)

1. General Information

This document will provide some background information about the nature of the hearing and the
roles of various participants during the process required when a decision of the APA Commission
on Accreditation (CoA) is being appealed.

2. Nature of Hearing

The conduct of the hearing is relatively informal. Besides the members of the hearing panel,
present at the hearing are at least one member of the Commission on Accreditation who serves as
its advocate, representatives of the Appellant Program, staff members of the Office of Program
Consultation and Accreditation who are present in an advisory role, and APA legal counsel. The
appellant program may be accompanied by counsel, as may CoA. The goal of the hearing is to
provide a meaningful forum for an appeal so that the appellant is accorded the basic right of
fundamental fairness and the right to be heard.

3. Role of APA Attorney

APA’s legal counsel will attend the hearing. In addition to advising APA, counsel has
responsibility to assure compliance with the Accreditation Operating Procedures and may resolve
legal or procedural issues or advise the panel regarding those issues. As part of counsel’s
responsibility to assure compliance with the Procedures, legal counsel may resolve any issues
concerning the admissibility of evidence. Although the evidentiary record is not limited to formal
evidence that would be admitted in a court of law, counsel will enforce the requirement that only
facts or materials that were before the CoA at the time of its final decision may be considered by
the hearing panel. Counsel can meet or confer with the panelists privately before, during or after
the hearing for the purpose of fulfilling counsel’s responsibilities, or advising the panel regarding
legal or procedural issues, but will not participate in the panel’s substantive deliberations.

4. Function of the Hearing Panel

The issues at the hearing are limited to those findings upon which the Commission based its
decision. The procedural and substantive grounds for challenging the Commission’s decisions are
limited to those stated in the program’s appeal letter.

Only the facts or materials that were before the Commission at the time of its final decision may
be considered by the panel. Facts which were not before the Commission at the time of its decision

10 Because appeals are handled by the APA Board of Educational Affairs (BEA), policies in section D5 are BEA policies.



or which came into existence subsequent to the Commission’s decision are inadmissible (and any
reference to such facts must be disregarded). The program may, however, provide clarifying
arguments such as those in briefs, appeal statements, or demonstrative exhibits which clearly relate
to the factual record that was before the Commission at the time of its decision.

The program will be provided a final listing of the record before the Commission and a copy of
the record at least 30 days before the date of the appeal hearing. If the program objects to the
record or wishes to refer to any fact or material not included in that record, it must notify the Office
of Program Consultation and Accreditation at least 15 days prior to the hearing so that the issue
can be resolved by APA’s legal counsel.

5. Standard of Review.

The Commission’s decision should be affirmed unless (a) there was a procedural error and
adherence to the proper procedures would dictate a different decision; or (b) based on the record
before it, the Commission’s decision was plainly wrong or without evidence to support it.

6. Decision Options of the Panel.

The appeal panel has the options of: (a) upholding the CoA decision; (b) amending e+ reversing
the CoA decision; or (c) remanding the matter to the Commission te-address-with an explanation
of the basis for a decision different from that of CoA"!

7. Hearing Procedures

The order of presentation at the hearing is as follows:

The Program presents first.

b. The Representative of the Commission on Accreditation presents next.

C. The Program has the opportunity to present a final rebuttal to the Commission’s
presentation.

d. The Commission representative may offer a rejoinder to the Program’s rebuttal,

provided that the program has an opportunity to present a final rebuttal.

8. Written Decision

! US Department of Education requires that, “in the event of a decision to remand the adverse
action to the original decision-making body for further consideration, the appeals panel must
1dentify specific issues that explain the basis for a decision that differs from that of the original
decision-making body must address. In a decision that is implemented by or remanded to and the
original decision-making body, that body must in a remand must act in a manner consistent with
the appeals panel's decisions or instructions.” (CFR § 602.25 iv)




Within 30 days of the hearing, the panel will prepare a report that will state its decision and the
basis of that decision based on the record before the panel.

9. Ex parte Communications

The panel will avoid ex parte communications by adhering to the following requirements:

a. Only information submitted to the panel for the hearing or in prehearing
submissions furnished to both sides shall be considered by the panel in arriving at
its final decision.

b. Parties, or their advocates, shall not communicate with the panel about the appeal
outside of the hearing room.

C. Panel members will not respond to phone calls or letters from parties involved in
the hearing, APA members, or any other persons concerning the appeal hearing or
the panel’s deliberations or its ultimate decision prior to or following the hearing
itself.

These requirements do not foreclose APA’s Legal Counsel from performing the functions
described above.

Approved by the Board of Educational Affairs (BEA), October 22-24, 2000
Revision to Section 6 effective July 1, 2010



Appendix D

D.8-2. Procedures for Notification of CoA Actions in Accordance with the Secretary of
Education’s Standards for Recognition of Accrediting Agencies
(Commission on Accreditation, October 1997; revised October 2004, July 2009, July 2010, July
2011, February 2016, October 2019; Revised for Public Notice, February 2021)

This implementation procedure outlines the steps that will be taken by the CoA, consistent with
the Secretary's requirements and with Section 5 (Confidentiality and Public Disclosure of
Information) of the CoA’s Accreditation Operating Procedures, to provide information on CoA
activities, actions and decisions to the Secretary, State agencies, other accrediting agencies, and
the public.

1. Information to the U.S. Department of Education (ED)

Appropriate
Item Section How Often and/or When
Reference in
USDE
Regulations
Lists of Accredited Programs 602.27(b) Annually
CoA annual report (contains the 602.27(a) Annually
CoA’s accrediting actions as defined
in AOP 8.2 D, 8.2 1, and 8.2 P for
that year)
Summary of CoA’s major 602.27(c) If requested
accrediting activities during previous
year (annual data summary)
The name of any accredited program | 602.27(e) As needed

that the CoA has reason to believe is
failing to comply with Title IV, HEA
program responsibilities or is
engaged in fraud or abuse, and the
CoA’s reason for such concern
Notification of any proposed change | 602.27(d) As needed
in policies, procedures, or
accreditation standards that might
alter the CoA’s scope of recognition
or compliance with the criteria for

recognition
Notification of decision to award 602.26(a)(1), and | No later than 30 days after
initial accreditation or decision to (a)(2) decision

renew accreditation




an applicant program e+place
e
I | . 2 I l

Final!2 decision to place program on | 602.26(b) At same time program is
“accredited, on probation” status informed*

Final'? decision to deny or revoke 602.26(c)(1), and | At same time program is
accreditation, or deny a site visit to 2) informed, but no later than 30

days after decision is final'®

All accreditation decisions as

Per request of the

No later than 30 days after the

reasons for denial or revocation of a
program’s accreditation or denial of
a site visit / program’s comments on
action (if any)

defined in AOP 8.2 D, I, and P with | Department of CoA meeting in which the

appeal status Education decision is made

Program decision to withdraw 602.26(f)(1) No later than 120 business days

voluntarily from accreditation after notification is received by
the CoA

Program decision to allow 602.26(e)(2) No later than 120 days after date

accreditation to lapse on which accreditation lapses

Brief statement summarizing the 602.26(d) No later than 60 days after

decision is final

12 The term “final” as used throughout this Implementing Regulation encompasses the following: In the case of

appealable decisions (denial of accreditation or a site visit to an applicant program, probation, or revocation), the

CoA’s accreditation decisions become final either (1) 30 days after the program is notified of the CoA’s decision

and the program elects not to appeal, or (2) if the program elects to appeal the decision, after receipt of the appeal

panel report if the appeal panel upholds the CoA’s decision. All decisions are made public within one day of

institutional notification.

14 Note: Programs placed on accredited, on probation status are required to disclose this action to all current and

prospective students within 7 days of notice.




2.

Publicly-Available Information

Unless otherwise noted, items below appear in electronic form on the accreditation website.

Current lists of accredited doctoral, internship and postdoctoral programs

Program review cycles for current year

Standards of Accreditation, Accreditation Operating Procedures, and Implementing
Regulations

List of current CoA members, including their academic and professional qualifications and
relevant employment/organizational affiliations

List of current accreditation office staff, including the academic and professional qualifications
of the principal administrative staff

Important accreditation dates for the current year, including CoA meeting dates

A statement of reasons for denial or revocation of accredited status or denial of a site visit, in
accordance with CoA procedure for notice of such actions

In addition to being contained on website and in other published materials, upon request, a
program decision to withdraw voluntarily from accreditation 30 days or more after notification
is received by CoA

Upon request, a program decision to allow accreditation to lapse

CoA annual report, which includes CoA membership composition and diversity, a summary
of program review decisions, policy changes, and other CoA activities throughout the year
When published, aggregate statistics on accredited programs drawn from the Annual Report
Online

Information to State Licensing Boards

All state psychology licensing boards will receive the following:

4.

Updated list of accredited doctoral and internship programs (annually)

Updated Standards of Accreditation and Accreditation Operating Procedures (following
publication of updated versions)

CoA annual report (annually)

Final decisions to place a program on accredited on probation status

Initiated and final adverse actions (i.e., denial of accreditation, revocation of accreditation)

Information to Other Accrediting Agencies

All accrediting agencies that are currently or were previously recognized either by the Secretary
of Education or the Commission on Recognition of Postsecondary Accreditation
(CORPA)/Council on Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA); and/or are members of the
Association of Specialized and Professional Accreditors (ASPA), will receive the following
information:

CoA annual report (annually)



e Updated list of accredited doctoral and internship programs (annually)
o Updated Standards of Accreditation and Accreditation Operating Procedures (following
publication of updated versions)

In addition, the regional or national body that accredits any institution housing a program and the
State agency that authorizes that institution (doctoral program only) will be notified of the CoA’s
action with regard to that program, as follows:

e CoA decisions to award initial accreditation or renew accreditation: no later than 30 days after
decision

e Final decisions of “accredited, on probation” status, denial of a site visit, or denial or revocation
of accreditation: at the same time the program is informed but no later than 30 days after
decision becomes final

e A statement of reasons for denial or revocation of accreditation or denial of a site visit in
accordance with Implementing Regulation D.8-4.

e Decisions by accredited programs to voluntarily withdraw from accreditation: no later than 36
10 days after CoA is notified

e Decisions by accredited programs to allow accreditation to lapse: no later than 30 10 days after
the date on which accreditation lapses.

e Upon request, CoA will share with the institutional accrediting agency or State approval
agency information about the accreditation status and any adverse action it has taken against
such a program.



D.8-5. Implementation Procedure for Notification by the Commission on Accreditation of
Final Decisions of Denial/Revocation of Accreditation, Denial of a Site Visit, or Probation
to the U.S. Secretary of Education, Appropriate State Licensing Agency, and Appropriate
Institutional Accrediting Agency
(Commission on Accreditation, October 2000; revised October 2004, Revised for Public Notice,
February 2021)

Section 602.26(b-c) of the regulations for the U.S. Secretary of Education’s Recognition of
Accrediting Agencies (34 CFR Part 602.26, effective July 1, 200020) states the following:

“[The agency] provides written notice of thefollowinetypes a final decision of a probation or
equivalent status, or an initiated adverse actions to the Secretary, the appropriate State licensing

or authorizing agency, and the appropriate accrediting agencies at the same time it notifies the
institution or program of the [accreditation] decision, and by-nelaterthan30-days-after-itreaches
the-deeistorn=—requires the institution or program to disclose such an action within seven business
days of receipt to all current and prospective students;

“[The agency] provides written notice of the following types of decisions to the Secretary, the
appropriate State licensing or authorizing agency, and the appropriate accrediting agencies at
the same time it notifies the institution or program of the [accreditation] decision, but no later

than 30 days after it reaches the decision: (1) afinal-decisionto-pltace-an-institution-or-progrant
onprobation-or-eqgrivalent-status—+2)-a final decision to deny, withdraw, suspend, revoke, or

terminate the accreditation or preaccreditation of an institution or program (2) A final decision
to take any other adverse action, as defined by the agency, not listed in paragraph (c)(1) of this
section.”

This implementation procedure outlines the steps that will be taken by the CoA, consistent with
the Secretary’s requirements and with Section 8 (Confidentiality and Public Disclosure of
Information) of the CoA’s Accreditation Operating Procedures. For the purposes of this
procedure, “appropriate State licensing or authorizing authority” refers to the psychology licensing
board of the state in which the program (doctoral, internship, or postdoctoral residency) is located,
and “appropriate accrediting agency” refers to the agency responsible for the accreditation of the
institution in which the program is housed (doctoral programs only).

The following CoA decisions are governed by this policy: accredited, on probation; denial of
accreditation to an applicant program; revocation of accreditation; and denial of a site visit to an
applicant program. Because these decisions are appealable, they do not become final until either
(1) 30 days after the program is notified of the CoA’s decision and the program elects not to appeal,
or (2) if the program elects to appeal the decision, after receipt of the appeal panel report if the
appeal panel upholds the CoA’s decision. (The appeal panel may also return the matter to the CoA
for reconsideration,)

1. When the CoA elects to deny or revoke accreditation, deny a site visit to an applicant program,
or place a program on “accredited, on probation” status, the affected program will receive two
letters. The first letter will communicate the CoA’s decision and will be mailed no more than
30 days after the CoA meeting per the Accreditation Operating Procedures. The second letter



will inform the program that the decision of the CoA has become final and will be mailed
either: (1) 30 days after the original notification, if the program elects not to appeal the
decision, or (2) as a cover letter to the report of the appeal panel, if the program appeals the
decision and the decision is upheld by the appeal panel. (Per the Accreditation Operating
Procedures, the appeal panel has 30 days to file its report.)

The Secretary of Education (or his/her designated Department official), the executive director
of the appropriate State licensing agency, and (for doctoral programs) the executive director of
the appropriate institutional accrediting agency will be listed as recipients of copies of the letter
which communicates that the decision has become final. These individuals, however, will not
receive copies of any attachments, such as appeal hearing reports.






Supporting member jurisdictions in fulfilling their responsibility of public protection

President
Tomas Granados, PsyD

Chief Executive Officer
Mariann Burnetti-Atwell, PsyD

Past President
Sheila G. Young, PhD

President-Elect
Alan B. Slusky, PhD, CPsych

Secretary-Treasurer
Cindy Olvey, PsyD

Members at Large
Herbert L. Stewart, PhD
Michelle G. Paul, PhD
Hugh D. Moore, PhD, MBA

Associate Executive Officer
Member Services
Janet P. Orwig, MBA, CAE

Senior Director of Examinations
Services
Matt Turner, PhD

Director of Credentialing
Management
Taja Slaughter, MPA

Director of Educational Affairs
Jacqueline B. Horn, PhD

Director of Meetings and Events
Anita Scott, CMP, CMM

Director of Professional Affairs
Alex Siegel, PhD, JD

February 24, 2021

Dear ASPPB Membership,

As you are aware, approximately one year ago, the American Psychologist published an
article that challenged the processes and validation of the EPPP (Part2-Skills). ASPPB
provided a clarifying update to members at that time. In 2020, ASPPB also submitted to APA
a formal comment to this article and that article was finally published this month. We
continue to be in disagreement with the authors and we stand by our earlier position, which
we believe is based on fact and accepted principles of test construction and use. Please find
attached our comment to the article in an effort to keep you informed.

In addition, to provide clarity about the purpose and validation process for the EPPP (Part 2-
Skills), listed below are the most common concerns that have been raised followed by
factual information about the exam:

Purpose of the Examination:
Concern: There is no need for a skills exam.

Fact: Skills have not been assessed in a consistent manner by all jurisdictions and many
concerns have been raised about the reliance on supervisor evaluations. The EPPP (Part 1-
Knowledge) is a foundational knowledge exam that has been criticized for many years
because it is not a skills exam. Together, the EPPP (Part 1-Knowledge) and the EPPP (Part 2-
Skills) provide licensing boards with a competency examination that assesses both the
knowledge and skills of applicants for licensure.

Validity:

Concern: The EPPP (Part 2-Skill) is not valid because criterion-related validity must be
established before the exam can be considered to be valid.

Fact: EPPP (Part 2-Skills) is a valid assessment of skills that has undergone a rigorous
validation process that exceeds industry standards for development of a licensure exam. As
with all licensure exams, the validation process is ongoing and involves continuous review
and statistical analysis of every item used in the exam.

215 Market Road ¢ PO Box 849 ¢ Tyrone, Georgia ® 30290 ¢ (678) 216-1175 ¢ www.asppb.org



file://///FS01/Common/Marketing/www.asppb.org

Fact: All licensure exams, including the EPPP, are built on a content validation strategy. For the EPPP, this also involves
expert review from licensed psychologists at every step of the process. Since the purpose of a licensure exam is not to
predict future performance, a criterion-related validation process is inappropriate. Moreover, even if criterion-related
validity were appropriate, in most cases, any criterion that might be chosen is less psychometrically sound than the exam
itself. This has been known and published for decades, but some critics continue to cite a need for inappropriate validation
standards for the EPPP. As stated in the Standards for Educational and Psychological Testing (2014):

Criterion-related evidence is of little applicability because credentialing examinations are not intended to predict
individual performance but rather to provide evidence that candidates have acquired the knowledge, skills, and
judgment required for effective performance. (pp. 175-176)

Test bias:
Concern: ASPPB has not considered diversity factors sufficiently in development of the EPPP.

Fact: Reducing the possibility of test bias on the EPPP has been a priority for ASPPB for decades, and many steps are taken
to ensure the exam is fair for all candidates. For example, ASPPB strives to achieve a representative membership in
examination committees and item writing groups. This includes seeking writers who vary in gender, ethnicity, training
backgrounds, professional expertise, work settings, and geographic locations. ltem writers and reviewers are trained to
consider many factors in evaluating item suitability, including cultural and linguistic considerations. Additionally, all writers
receive training on addressing implicit bias in item development. Most recently, ASPPB has begun to collect ethnicity data
in order to conduct Differential ltem Functioning (DIF) analyses. Using the results of these analyses, items that function
differentially across groups will be reviewed by experts on cultural competence for possible removal of the item from the
examination. ASPPB consistently has allocated a great deal of time and resources to extensive review processes designed
to ensure that the exam is fair for all candidates.

It is a priority of ASPPB to provide a fair, reliable, valid and defensible examination for use by regulatory authorities
throughout the United States, its territories, and Canada. As such, it is ASPPB’s hope that the facts associated with the
process of test development for the EPPP (Part 2-Skills), as described in this document, will provide you with beneficial and
informative details related to the exam.

More detailed information is available in an FAQ section of the ASPPB website, at www.asppb.net. And finally, please
contact either Dr. Matt Turner, Senior Director of Examination Services, at mturner@asppb.org or me at mburnetti-
atwell@asppb.org should you have any questions or concerns related to the development of the EPPP.

Respectfully,

Mariann Burnetti-Atwell, PsyD
Chief Executive Officer
Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards


http://www.asppb.net/
mailto:mturner@asppb.org
mailto:mburnetti-atwell@asppb.org
mailto:mburnetti-atwell@asppb.org

RESPONSE TO AP Article

© 2021, American Psychological Association. This paper is not the copy of record and may not
exactly replicate the final, authoritative version of the article. Please do not copy or cite without
authors' permission. The final article is available via its DOI: 10.1037/amp0000695

Appropriate Validation Standards for Licensure Examinations:

A Response to Callahan et al. (2021)

Matthew D. Turner, Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards
John Hunsley, University of Ottawa

Emil R. Rodolfa, California School of Professional Psychology Alliant International University



RESPONSE TO AP Article 2

Appropriate Validation Standards for Licensure Examinations:
A Response to Callahan et al. (2020)
Abstract
Callahan et al. (2020) asserted that the EPPP (Part 2-Skills) has not undergone appropriate
validation. Although they recognized that content validity is the foundation of licensure
examinations, they suggested additional validational strategies that are not recommended for
licensure examination development. This response clarifies the appropriate validation standards

for the examination.

Callahan et al. (2020) argued that the EPPP (Part 2-Skills) had not been subjected to
appropriate validation during its development. This response clarifies the appropriate validation
standards for the development of licensure examinations.

The EPPP (Part 2-Skills) was developed to provide licensing boards a reliable and valid
measure of skills in response to the increasing “culture of competence” in professional
psychology (Roberts et al., 2005). Based on input for the need for such an examination from
licensing boards, the Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards (ASPPB) began
work on the examination over a decade ago (ASPPB, 2019)

Similar to the development of the EPPP (Part 1-Knowledge) during the past 60 years, the
EPPP (Part 2-Skills) was developed using procedures outlined in the Standards for Educational and
Psychological Testing (Standards) (American Educational Research Association, American
Psychological Association, & National Council on Measurement in Education, 2014), including
the use of a standard setting procedure to determine the pass point that represents the minimal skills
required for entry level practice. The Standards emphasize that licensure/credentialing examinations

are built from a content validation framework, and this framework is used for licensure examinations



RESPONSE TO AP Article 3

across professions. The Standards indicate that validation methodologies typically used for cognitive
or psychosocial functioning measures are of limited relevance to licensure testing: “criterion related
validity is of limited applicability because credentialing examinations are not intended to predict
individual job performance in a specific job but rather provide evidence that the candidates have
acquired the knowledge, skills and judgement required for the effective performance, often in a wide
variety of settings...” (p. 175-176).

The purpose of a licensing examination is to provide a licensing board with information that,
by passing the examination, a candidate has demonstrated a minimum level of knowledge or skills
for providing services independently at the point of licensure. Even if criterion related validity
evidence was desirable for a licensing examination, there are two constraints that would need to be
considered for any validation efforts: (a) measures of external criteria generally do not exist or are
not psychometrically sound and (b) only pass/fail results, not the total examination score or the
examination domain scores, should be used in validation analyses. To suggest that a licensure
examination should not be used due a lack of criterion related validity evidence implies a standard
that no licensure examination meets or should meet. Accordingly, the “appropriateness indices” in
Callahan et al.’s Table 1, most of which are criterion related validity indices, are largely irrelevant to
the development of the EPPP or any other licensing examination. For example, for concurrent
validity, psychometrically sound measures of the broad range of entry level skills necessary in
professional psychology (not just clinical psychology, as Callahan et al. suggested) would be
required; currently, such measures do not exist. The suggestion to determine whether the EPPP (Part
2-Skills) predicts variance in clinical roles beyond that predicted by the EPPP (Part 1-Knowledge) is
also problematic. Although this kind of incremental validity analysis is often undertaken with
psychological measures, establishing a meaningful, validated criterion for a licensing examination is
likely not possible (Kane, 1982). There is no measure of what makes a “good” or competent

psychologist and, as Kane noted, “to